

Pool Administration McGriff 1800 SW First Avenue, Suite 400 Portland, OR 97201 Phone: (800) 318-8870 Fax: (503) 943-6622

INSTRUCTIONS AND CHECKLIST TO JOIN THE POOL BY PROPERLY EXECUTING THE RESOLUTION AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA)

- Please use the provided copies of the Resolution and IGA without alteration. When changes are warranted, please submit the modified draft Resolution (prior to Board action and signature) for review by the Pool Counsel for acceptance by the Pool Board of Directors.
- ____ The Board Chair must sign both the Resolution and IGA.
- _____ The Board's Secretary or other Board Director must attest to the Chair's signature on both the Resolution and IGA. If this attestation is not made by the Secretary, please indicate the name and position on the Board (if applicable) of the Director making the attestation.
- _____ Enter the current date on both the Resolution and IGA signature pages.
- ____ Enter the coverages and the effective dates on the second page of the Resolution. Subsequent renewal coverages or additions will be automatically recognized in the agreement.
- Each District must designate on the Resolution specific individuals (not necessarily Board Directors) to be the Primary and Alternative Pool Representatives. These individuals may not be a company, and a single person may not serve as both the Primary and Alternative Representative.
- Please enter a current email and mailing address for the Primary and Alternative Representatives.
 You may specify the individual's mailing address as being in care of a company.
- _____ Groups of related Districts must each provide separate signed documents if each is a separate legal entity. Each legal entity will have their own separate policy in the Pool.
- _____ Please indicate adoption of the Resolution by two Directors on Page 2 of the Resolution.
- _____ A copy of the Resolution and one original IGA document must be returned to McGriff Insurance Services, Inc., the Pool Administrator. If the District wishes to retain an original copy, please have duplicate originals signed at the same time.

PLEASE NOTE IT IS IMPORTANT THAT CURRENT REPRESENTATIVE AND/OR ALTERNATE INFORMATION BE MAINTAINED WITH THE POOL ADMINISTRATOR. WE REQUEST ANY CHANGES BE SUBMITTED IN WRITING AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.

RESOLUTION NO. ____, SERIES 20___

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Vistas at West Mesa Metropolitan District (hereafter referred to as "the District") has authority under Article XIV, Section 18(2)(a) of the Colorado Constitution, and §§ 24-10-115.5, 29-13-102, 29-1-201, et seq., and 8-44-204 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, as amended, to participate in a self-insurance pool for property and liability and/or workers' compensation coverages;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed a contract to cooperate with other Colorado Special Districts by participating in a self-insurance pool for property and liability and/or workers' compensation coverages entitled "Intergovernmental Agreement for the Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool", a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated into this Resolution; and.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds that participation in such a pool would be in the best interest of the District, its employees, and its taxpayers.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the District hereby:

- Approves the contract entitled Intergovernmental Agreement for the Colorado Special Districts 1. Property and Liability Pool, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated into this Resolution by this reference.
- 2. Authorizes and directs the Chair of the Board of Directors to execute Exhibit A on behalf of the District.
- 3. Directs the Secretary of the Board of Directors to transmit to the Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool (hereafter referred to as "Pool"), McGriff Insurance Services, Inc., PO Box 1539, Portland, OR 97207-1539, an executed and attested copy of this Resolution and one original of Exhibit A.
- Designates Kevin Walker _____as District's initial 4. Representative to the Pool and designates George M. Rowley, Esq. as the District's Alternative Representative.
- 5. Provides the following contact information for the Representative and Alternate Representative: Representative Email Address: _kevin.w@wsdistricts.co

Representative Mailing Address: 614 N Tejon Street, Colorado Springs, CO 80903

Representative Phone Number:

Alternate Representative Email Address: growley@wbapc.com

Alternate Representative Mailing Address: 2154 East Commons Avenue, Suite 2000, Centennial, Colorado 80122

Alternate Representative Phone Number: 303-858-180

6. Understands that, with the adoption of this Resolution, the District becomes a member of the Pool, with coverage to be provided by or through the Pool on such date as determined by the District and Pool.

Director Jeff Powles moved the adoption of the above Resolution.

Director Thomas Pucciano seconded the adoption of the above Resolution.

This Resolution was adopted by a majority vote of the Board of Directors of the District

on the <u>31st</u> day of <u>January</u>, 20 <u>22</u>.

Jeff Powles

Chair of the Board

ATTEST:

, 2022 12:28 MST)

Secretary of the Board

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS PROPERTY AND LIABILITY POOL

As Amended SEPTEMBER 16, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE	1	Definitions	1
ARTICLE	2	Creation of Pool	1
ARTICLE	3	Purposes	2
ARTICLE	4	Non-Waiver of Governmental or Other Immunity	2
ARTICLE	5	Participation	2
ARTICLE	6	Board of Directors and Officers	3
ARTICLE	7	Meetings of the Board of Directors	4
ARTICLE	8	Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors	4
ARTICLE	9	Members' Powers and Meetings	6
ARTICLE	10	Obligations of Members	7
ARTICLE	11	Contributions	8
ARTICLE	12	Liability of Directors, Officers and Employees	.10
ARTICLE	13	Withdrawal of Members	.11
ARTICLE	14	Expulsion of Members	.11
ARTICLE	15	Effect of Withdrawal or Expulsion	.12
ARTICLE	16	Miscellaneous	.13

J INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS PROPERTY AND LIABILITY POOL

ARTICLE 1. Definitions

As used in this Pool Agreement, the following terms shall have the meaning hereinafter set out:

- 1.1 <u>BOARD</u>: Board of Directors of the Pool.
- 1.2 <u>CLAIM YEAR</u>: Any twelve consecutive month period established by the Board. The "initial" claim year is the first claim year established for the Pool.
- 1.3 **<u>DIRECTOR</u>**: A person serving on the Board.
- 1.4 <u>MEMBER</u>: A Special District which enters into this Pool Agreement. An "initial" member of the Pool is a member which obtains coverage through the Pool during the initial claim year.
- 1.5 <u>MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE</u>: That person who is an elected official, employee, or other person designated in writing by a Member as its representative or alternate to the Pool.
- 1.6 <u>POOL</u>: The Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool established pursuant to the Constitution and the statutes of this state by this Pool Agreement.
- 1.7 <u>POOL AGREEMENT</u>: This Intergovernmental Agreement for the Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool.
- 1.8 <u>PUBLIC ENTITY</u>: A public entity pursuant to Section 24-10-103(5), C.R.S., as amended, and that is formed by this Pool Agreement by Member Special Districts as a separate and independent governmental and legal entity pursuant to the provisions of Article XIV, Section 18(2) of the Colorado Constitution and Sections 29-1-201 <u>et</u>. <u>seq</u>., 8-44-101(1)(C) and (3), 8-44-204, 24-10-115.5, and 29-13-102, C.R.S., as amended.
- 1.9 <u>SPECIAL DISTRICT</u>: A political subdivision of the State of Colorado that is a unit of local government pursuant to Article 13, Title 29, C.R.S., as amended, that is a public entity pursuant to Section 24-10-103(5), C.R.S., as amended, and that is eligible for membership in the Special District Association of Colorado according to the Association's bylaws as amended and in effect from time to time. "Special District" also includes any separate entity created by intergovernmental agreement authorized by Part 2, Article 1, Title 29, C.R.S., as amended, if at least one of the contracting entities is a special district and if all of the contracting entities are units of a local government pursuant to Article 13, Title 29, C.R.S., as amended, and are public entities pursuant to Section 24-10-103(5), C.R.S., as

amended.

1.10 <u>SDA BOARD</u>: The Board of Directors of the Special District Association of Colorado.

ARTICLE 2. Creation of Pool

- 2.1 The Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool is hereby formed by this Pool Agreement by Member Special Districts as a separate and independent governmental and legal entity pursuant to the provisions of Article XIV, Section 18(2) of the Colorado Constitution and Sections 29-1-201 et. seq., 8-44-101(1)(C) and (3), 8-44-204, 24-10-115.5, and 29-13-102, C.R.S., as amended.
- 2.2 Each Special District entering into this Pool Agreement has the power under Colorado law to make provision for the property and liability coverages, workers' compensation benefits, and risk management, claims handling, and other functions and services which constitute the specific functions and services jointly provided by means of the Pool.

ARTICLE 3. Purposes

- 3.1 The purposes of the Pool are to provide defined property, liability, workers' compensation and associated coverages, and claims and risk management services related thereto, for Member Special Districts through a self-insurance pool.
- 3.2 It is the intent of the Members to use Member contributions to defend and indemnify, in accordance with this Pool Agreement, any Member against stated liability or loss to the extent of the coverage provided by or through the Pool.
- 3.3 All income and assets of the Pool shall be at all times dedicated to the exclusive benefit of its Members.

ARTICLE 4. Non-Waiver of Governmental or Other Immunity

4.1 All Pool money, plus earned interest, is money derived from its Members which consist solely of Special Districts and a Public Entity within the State of Colorado. It is the intent of the Members and the Public Entity that, by entering into this Pool Agreement, they do not waive and are not waiving any immunity provided by any law to the Public Entity, Members or their public employees, as defined in Section 24-10-103(4), C.R.S., as amended.

ARTICLE 5. Participation

5.1 The Board shall have the authority to limit the Members of the Pool to those Colorado Special Districts which are members of the Special District Association of Colorado and which properly enter into and adopt this Pool Agreement.

- 5.2 New Members, including special districts which have previously withdrawn or been expelled from the Pool, shall be admitted only upon approval by the Board, subject to the payment of such sums and under such conditions as the Board in each case or from time-to-time establishes.
- 5.3 A Member may participate in the Pool for either or both of the following purposes:
 - 1. The property and liability coverages authorized by Sections 24-10-115.5 and 29-13-102, C.R.S., as amended, and risk management, claims handling and other functions and services related to such coverages;
 - 2. The workers' compensation coverages authorized by Sections 8-44-101(1)(C) and (3) and 8-44-204, C.R.S., as amended, and risk management, claims handling, and other functions and services related to such coverages.
- 5.4 A Member who is participating in the Pool for one of the purposes set forth in Paragraph 5.3 may be authorized to participate in the Pool for the other of those purposes upon further compliance, as necessary, with Paragraph 5.1 and approval of the Board, subject to the payment of such sums and under such conditions as the Board in each case or from time-to-time establishes.
- 5.5 Upon a vote of the Directors, the Board shall have the authority to approve a Public Entity to participate in the Pool for one of the purposes set forth in Paragraph 5.3. If a Public Entity is allowed to participate in the Pool, the Board must adopt rules, pursuant to Subparagraph 14 of Paragraph 8.2, to ensure that participation by the Public Entity will not interfere or conflict with the Board's obligations to its Members or impair the financial condition of the Pool. The Board shall also have the authority, upon a vote of the Directors, to remove the Public Entity from participation in the Pool. A Public Entity approved by the Board to participate in the Pool is not a Member, does not have powers of a Member under Article 9, and may not request binding arbitration under Paragraph 16.11.

ARTICLE 6. Board of Directors and Officers

6.1 The Pool Board of Directors shall be composed of nine persons to be appointed by the SDA Board. Directors shall be appointed from among the Member Representatives, each from a different Member. At least one (1) Pool Director shall be appointed by the SDA Board from among the SDA directors. Pool Directors who are not SDA directors shall be appointed by the SDA Board from nominations received from Members. In no event may more than three Pool Directors be appointed from any one of the following types of special districts: Ambulance, Fire, Metropolitan, Park and Recreation, Sanitation, Water, Water and Sanitation, Hospital, or Library Districts. Nominations from the Members shall be submitted to the SDA Board at such time as the SDA Board may provide, and any nomination must be approved by the Board of Directors of the Member submitting the

303-858-1800

nomination.

- 6.2 The Executive Director of the SDA shall serve as an ex-officio, non-voting Director on the Board. Additionally, an employee of the SDA, as designated by the Executive Director of the SDA, shall serve as a non-voting Director on the Board in the role of Pool Liaison, to act as an intermediary between the Pool Board and its vendors for the purpose of coordinating services.
- 6.3 Terms of the Directors shall be two-year, overlapping terms or until their successors have been appointed, except as provided herein. The term of office shall begin on a January 1, and end at midnight on a December 31, except that the Directors appointed to the first Board following the formation of the Pool shall begin their term prior to a January 1 if the SDA Board so directs. Directors may serve successive terms. The SDA Board shall appoint to the first Board following formation of the Pool, three Directors to serve one-year terms and four Directors to serve two year terms, with the successors of each appointed for two-year terms. Of the two additional persons to be appointed to serve a one-year term and one shall be appointed to serve a two-year term, with the successors of each appointed for two-year terms; the terms of office of the two additional persons initially appointed may begin prior to a January 1 if the SDA Board so directs.
- 6.4 The officers of the Pool shall be: president, one or more vice presidents, secretary, one or more assistant secretaries, and comptroller. The officers shall be elected annually by and from among the Directors at the first meeting of the Board following each December 31.
- 6.5 A vacancy shall occur on the Board when a Director:
 - 1. Submits a written resignation to the Board;
 - 2. Dies;
 - 3. Ceases to be a Member Representative;
 - 4. Fails to attend three consecutive regular meetings of the Board without the Board having entered upon its minutes an approval for an additional absence or absences, except that such additional absence or absences shall be excused for temporary mental or physical disability or illness; or
 - 5. Is convicted of a felony.
- 6.6 A change in which Member has designated a Director as its Member Representative, including alternates, does not cause a vacancy on the Board unless the change causes there to be more than three Directors appointed from the types of special districts listed in Paragraph 6.1.

January 31, 2022

6.7 Any vacancy on the Board shall be filled by appointment by the SDA Board for the unexpired portion of the term.

ARTICLE 7. Meetings of the Board of Directors

- 7.1 The Board may set a time and place for regular meetings which may be held without further notice. The Members shall be notified of the time and place set for regular meetings.
- 7.2 Special meetings may be called by the President or by a majority of the Directors by mailing written notice at least ten (10) days in advance to all Directors or by unanimously executed waiver of notice.
- 7.3 Five Directors shall constitute a quorum to do business. All acts of the Board shall require approval of a majority of the Directors present, except as otherwise specifically provided in this Pool Agreement.
- 7.4 One or more or all Directors may participate in any meeting of the Board by means of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment by which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time. Participation by such means shall constitute presence at the meeting.
- 7.5 Any action of the Board may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken is signed by all Directors appointed to the Board. Such consent shall have the same effect as a unanimous vote. The consent may be executed in counterparts.

ARTICLE 8. Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors

- 8.1 The business and affairs of the Pool shall be managed by the Board which shall exercise all the authority and powers and discharge all the duties of the Pool, except as is otherwise provided in this Pool Agreement.
- 8.2 In addition to all other powers of the Board set out in this Pool Agreement, the Board shall have the power to:
 - 1. Exercise all powers necessary to carry out the purposes of the Pool.
 - 2. Retain agents, independent contractors and employees necessary to administer and achieve the purposes of the Pool, including, but not limited to, attorneys, accountants, investigators, experts, consultants, and others.
 - 3. Purchase, sell, encumber, and lease real property, and purchase, sell, encumber or lease equipment, machinery, and personal property.

303-858-18000

- 4. Invest money as allowed for the Pool by Colorado statutes or by lawful regulations adopted pursuant to Colorado statutes, as from time-to-time amended.
- 5. Purchase excess insurance, stop-loss insurance, and reinsurance as the Board deems prudent.
- 6. Adopt and adjust the coverages provided through the Pool.
- 7. Adopt and adjust contributions to the Pool.
- 8. Enter into contracts including, but not limited to, contracts for risk management, claim adjustment, and brokerage services.
- 9. Reimburse Directors for reasonable and approved expenses, including expenses incurred in attending Board meetings, and pay compensation to each Director for his or her services in a sum not to exceed the maximum sum which may by statute be paid as compensation for services of directors on Colorado special district boards of directors.
- 10. Purchase fidelity bonds from an insurance company approved by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of Colorado to do business in Colorado.
- 11. Establish reasonable and necessary loss reduction, prevention and risk management policies and procedures to be followed by the Members.
- 12. Appoint committees from time to time as the Board considers desirable.
- 13. Provide for claims and loss control procedures, and establish conditions to be met prior to the payment or defense of claims.
- 14. Establish rules governing its own conduct and procedure, and the authority of its officers, not inconsistent with this Pool Agreement.
- 15. Approve attorneys or firms of attorneys to represent Members in claims covered through the Pool.
- 16. Delegate in writing fiduciary responsibilities or ministerial powers and duties to individual Directors or committees of the Board or to such agents, employees, and independent contractors as the Board considers desirable.
- 8.3 In addition to all other duties of the Board set out in this Pool Agreement, the Board shall have the duty to:

- 1. Have an audit of the financial affairs of the Pool be made annually by a certified public accountant in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, and provide a copy thereof to each Member.
- 2. Select a qualified actuary to conduct periodic reviews of the Pool's funds and any reviews required by the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado, and make recommendations to the Board based on such reviews.
- 3. Designate one or more persons or entities to administer the Pool.
- 4. Adopt a budget annually and report the budget to the Members.
- 5. Three persons shall be appointed annually to an expulsion committee to serve until January 1 of the year following the appointment. One person, to be appointed by the Board, shall be a director on the board, one person, to be appointed by the Board, shall be a representative of the person(s) or entity(ies) providing general administrative services to the Pool, and one person, to be appointed by the SDA Board, shall be a member of the SDA Board.

ARTICLE 9. Members' Powers and Meetings

- 9.1 The Members shall have the power to:
 - a. Amend the Pool Agreement by a two thirds (2/3) vote of the Members present at a meeting. Written notice of any proposed amendment shall be provided to each Member at least forty-five (45) days in advance of any vote on the amendment.
 - b. Dissolve the Pool and disburse its assets by a two thirds (2/3) vote of the Members present at a meeting, pursuant to such notice and in keeping with such procedure as shall be established by the Board, and upon which question proxy voting shall not be allowed. Notice of the dissolution and plan for disbursement of assets and payment of the remaining obligations of the Pool shall be mailed to the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado at least ninety (90) days prior to the effective date of the dissolution. The plan for disbursement of assets and payment of the Pool shall not take effect until approved by the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado. Upon dissolution of the Pool, the assets of the Pool not used or needed for the purposes of the Pool, as determined by the Board and subject to approval by the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado, shall be distributed exclusively to Special Districts which are members of the Pool prior to dissolution to be used for one or more public purposes.
- 9.2 Meetings of the Members shall be held as follows:
 - a. Members shall meet at least once annually at a time and place to be set by the Board,

with notice mailed to each Member at least thirty (30) days in advance.

- b. Special meetings may be called by the Board upon its own motion and shall be called by the Board upon written request of thirty (30) percent of the Members, with notice mailed to each Member at least thirty (30) days in advance.
- c. The president of the Pool shall preside at the meetings; a vice president of the Pool shall preside in the absence of the president.
- d. Twenty (20) percent of the Members shall constitute a quorum to do business.
- e. Except for action to dissolve the Pool, proxy voting shall be allowed, pursuant to such procedures as the Board may determine.
- f. Each Member shall be entitled to one vote on each issue, to be cast by its Member Representative. No Director may cast a vote for a Member under Article 9.
- g. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Pool Agreement, any amendment to the Pool Agreement, except an amendment relating to dissolution of the Pool, may be adopted without a meeting if an approval in writing, setting forth the amendment approved, is signed by the Member Representatives of at least two thirds (2/3) of the Members. The approval may be executed in counterparts.

ARTICLE 10. Obligations of Members

- 10.1 Each Member and any Public Entity participating in the Pool shall have the obligation to:
 - a. Pay all contributions or other payments to the Pool at such times and in such amounts as shall be established by the Board. Any delinquent payments shall be paid with interest pursuant to a policy established by the Board and uniformly applied.
 - b. Designate in writing, a Member Representative and one or more alternates for the Members' meetings. The Representative and any alternate shall be an elected official, employee, or other designee of the Member, and may be changed from time-to-time. Any alternate may exercise all the powers of the Representative during a Member meeting in the absence of the Member Representative. No Public Entity Member may have a Member Representative or any alternates.
 - c. Allow the Pool and its agents, contractors, employees and officers reasonable access to all facilities and records of the Member as required for the administration of the Pool.
 - d. Cooperate fully with the Pool and all agents, contractors, employees and officers

thereof in matters relating to the Pool.

- e. Provide information requested by the Pool, and all agents, contractors, employees, and officers thereof, as reasonably required for the administration of the Pool.
- f. Allow the Pool to make decisions regarding, and to designate attorneys to represent the Member in, the investigation, settlement and litigation of any claim within the scope of coverage furnished through the Pool.
- g. Comply with the claims, loss reduction, prevention and risk management policies and procedures established by the Board.
- h. Promptly report to the Pool all incidents or occurrences which could reasonably be expected to result in the Pool being required to consider a claim, in any form required by the Board and in compliance with any applicable excess insurance or reinsurance.
- i. Promptly report to the Pool the addition of new programs and facilities or the significant reduction or expansion of existing programs and facilities or other acts, as directed by the Board and in compliance with any applicable excess insurance or reinsurance.

ARTICLE 11. Contributions

- 11.1 The Board shall establish Member and Public Entity contributions pursuant to guidelines established by the Board from time-to-time. The contributions may include an annual contribution and any additional contributions at such times and in such amounts as the Board deems necessary to insure the solvency and avoid impairment of the Pool or which the Board otherwise deems beneficial to protect the financial condition of the Pool. The Board may provide for disbursement of non-surplus credit balances which are, pursuant to guidelines adopted by the Board from time to time, due a Member, and such disbursements shall not be subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 11.2 or 15.1.
- 11.2 Any excess funds which the Board determines are not needed for the purposes of the Pool, may be distributed among the Members and former Members, subject to Paragraph 15.1, pursuant to the following:
 - 1. Any such distribution may be in the form of credits against future contributions or in the form of payments, or a combination thereof, as the Board may determine.
 - 2. Money distributed for any claim year shall be distributed only to those Members and former Members which were Members during that claim year and shall be distributed in order of claim year contribution, with Members and former Members of the initial claim year to receive the initial credits.

- 3. The amount which may be distributed for any claim year shall be established by the Board which shall have discretion as to the amount and timing of any distribution. That amount may not exceed the net sum of (i) the net income of the Pool for that claim year less (ii) the portion of the Pool's net income which equals the amount of the excess loss reserve of the claim year prior to the claim year (which is subject to the distribution) which was taken into income in that claim year plus (iii) the excess loss reserve for the claim year which is subject to the distribution.
- 4. For the purpose of this Paragraph 11.2, the term "excess loss reserves" means the amount by which the amounts credited to loss reserves and charged to operating expenses in any claim year exceed the actual losses (including loss adjustment expenses) for that claim year.
- 5. The amount established by the Board for a claim year pursuant to Subparagraph 3 of this Paragraph 11.2, shall be distributed among each Member and former Member which was a Member during that claim year based on the ratio which each Member's and former Member's contribution (excluding any surplus contribution) for the claim year bears to the total contributions (excluding surplus contributions) for the claim year and less the contributions of former Members which are not eligible for a distribution pursuant to Paragraph 15.1.
- 6. Excess surplus funds contributed by Members and former Members may be distributed only among such contributing Members or former Members, subject to the five year membership requirement of Paragraph 15.1. The Board has discretion to determine, from time to time, the amount and timing of any distribution of such funds. The amount established by the Board shall be distributed among each Member and eligible former Member based on the ratio which each Member's and former Member's surplus contribution bears to the total amount of surplus funds contributed to the Pool by Members and former Members.
- 7. No distribution of excess funds, including excess surplus funds contributed by Members, shall be made to any Member or former Member which owes any amount to the Pool until the amount so owed is paid, and any amount so owed may be deducted from the distribution to the Member or former Member.
- 8. No distribution of excess funds, including excess surplus funds contributed by Members, shall cause the Pool to become impaired or insolvent.
- 11.3 The total amount of surplus shall be determined by the Board from time-to-time, but in no event shall be less than that required by the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado, and the Board may require all Members to make additional contributions to surplus as the Board deem necessary, or the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado may require.

- 11.4 The Pool shall account separately for contributions made for the property and liability coverages authorized by Sections 24-10-115.5 and 29-13-102, C.R.S., as amended, and for contributions made for the workers' compensation coverage authorized by Sections 8-44-101(1)(C) and (3) and 8-44-204, C.R.S., as amended.
- 11.5 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Pool Board may establish from any contributions or other assets of the Pool the initial minimum surplus for workers' compensation coverage required by the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado; provided that contributions or other assets derived from coverages other than workers' compensation shall not be used to establish such minimum surplus unless and until the Board first determines that workers' compensation contributions are or will be insufficient to fund such surplus in the amounts and within the time required by the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado; and provided further, that such minimum surplus shall be established from contributions for workers' compensation coverage as soon as the Board determines practicable consistent with ensuring the solvency and avoiding the impairment of the Pool. The Board may issue subordinated debt to establish such minimum surplus consistent with applicable requirements of the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado.
- 11.6 The Pool shall repay the Special District Association of Colorado for its ongoing services to the Pool, provided subsequent to the creation of the Pool, within such time and in such amount as the SDA Board and Pool Board may agree.

ARTICLE 12. Liability of Directors, Officers and Employees

- 12.1 No Director, officer, committee member, Pool Liaison, or employee of the Pool shall be personally liable for any acts performed or omitted in good faith. The Pool shall indemnify each Director, officer, committee member, Pool Liaison, and employee of the Pool against any and all expense including attorney fees and liability expenses sustained by them, or any of them in connection with any suit or suits which may be brought against them involving or pertaining to any of their acts or duties performed for this Pool or omitted in good faith. This provision shall not be deemed to prevent compromises of any such litigation where the compromise is deemed advisable in order to prevent greater expense or cost in the defense or prosecution of such litigation.
- 12.2 The Pool shall obtain a fidelity bond or other bond to guarantee the faithful performance of each Director's, officer's Pool Liaison's, and employee's duties hereunder, and shall make reasonable effort to obtain errors and omissions coverage for each Director, officer, committee member, Pool Liaison, and employee of the Pool. The Pool shall obtain bonds for all Directors, officers, committee members, Pool Liaison, and employees who handle or have access to Pool funds, in an amount which the Board deems appropriate but no less than the minimum amount deemed necessary by the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado.

ARTICLE 13. Withdrawal of Members

- 13.1 Any Member may withdraw from the Pool by giving written notice to the Board of its intent to withdraw at least sixty (60) days prior to the Member's coverage renewal date. A Member which has different renewal dates for different coverages must give such written notice at least sixty (60) days prior to the first renewal date following any January 1. Unless a different date is agreed to by the Board and the Member, the withdrawal shall be effective on the Member's coverage renewal date but, if the Member has different renewal dates for different coverages, the withdrawal shall be effective the latest renewal date following the written notice of withdrawal. After the notice of withdrawal is given, no coverage will be renewed but all coverages will remain in effect only until their respective expiration dates.
- 13.2 Except as otherwise provided in this Paragraph, any Member which dissolves or which is consolidated with another Special District shall be considered a withdrawn Member with the same rights and obligations under this agreement as any other withdrawn Member, such withdrawal to be effective on the date of dissolution or consolidation, as the case may be. Notwithstanding Paragraph 15.1 and under the following circumstances only, a Special District shall receive the credits against its future contributions to the Pool otherwise allocable to a dissolved or consolidated Member pursuant to Paragraph 11.2:
 - 1. If the Special District was formed by a consolidation which included such a Member, the Special District assumed all rights of that Member under this agreement, and the Special District is a Member no later than one year after the effective date of the consolidation; or,
 - 2. If the Special District assumed all rights of a dissolved Member under this agreement, and the Special District is a Member no later than one year after the effective date of the dissolution.

A Special District entitled to receive such credits of a dissolved or consolidated Member shall not be obligated for any liabilities to the Pool of the dissolved or consolidated Member in excess of the amount of such credits.

ARTICLE 14. Expulsion of Members

14.1 A Member which fails to make a contribution or other payment due to the Pool shall be automatically expelled from the Pool on the sixtieth (60) day following the due date, unless time for payment is extended by the Board and payment is made within any extended period. A notice of failure to make a contribution or other payment due to the Pool shall be mailed to the Member at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of automatic expulsion. If payment is not made within any extended period, the automatic expulsion shall occur on a date, no later than twenty (20) days after the last day of the extended period, set by the Board. An expulsion under this Paragraph 14.1 shall not be subject to the provisions of Paragraph 14.2.

- 14.2 A Member may be expelled by the Board for failure to carry out any other obligation of the Member, or for failure to maintain its membership in the Special District Association of Colorado if such membership was required by the Board at the time the Member was admitted to the Pool, subject to the following:
 - 1. The Member shall receive notice from the Board of the alleged failure and not less than thirty (30) days in which to cure the alleged failure, along with notice that expulsion may result if the failure is not so cured.
 - 2. The Member shall receive at least thirty (30) days prior notice from the Board, of the date, place and time when the Board will consider expelling the Member from the Pool, and the Member shall be entitled to be present at that meeting and to present evidence and reasons why it should not be expelled. The decision of the Board shall be effective as of the date and upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Pool Agreement and applicable excess or reinsurance policies and otherwise specified by the Board, except as provided in Subparagraph 3 of this Paragraph 14.2.
 - 3. The Member may appeal the Board's decision to the expulsion committee, which shall schedule a hearing thereon. The Member and the Board shall be provided at least ten (10) days prior written notice of the date, time and place of the hearing. The appealing Member shall be entitled to be present at that hearing and to present evidence and reasons why it should not be expelled and the Board may present evidence and reasons why expulsion is proper. The decision of the expulsion committee shall be final and any expulsion effective as of the date and upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Pool Agreement and applicable excess or reinsurance policies, and otherwise specified by the Board.

ARTICLE 15. Effect of Withdrawal or Expulsion

- 15.1 No withdrawn or expelled Member shall be entitled to any reimbursement of contributions or distribution or excess funds, including excess surplus funds contributed by Members, unless the Member was a Member for at least five consecutive years.
- 15.2 A withdrawn or expelled Member shall remain obligated for all amounts owing at the time of withdrawal or expulsion for the years during which the member was an active member of the Pool and for all amounts which thereafter become owing for such years pursuant to the Pool Agreement and any other Pool documents which are in effect at the time of withdrawal.
- 15.3 A withdrawn or expelled Member shall be considered a Member of the Pool for the purpose of payment of the Member's claims and expenses related thereto which remain covered under the terms of coverage existing at the time of withdrawal. A withdrawn or expelled

303-858-1800

Member shall remain subject to all conditions of coverage and obligations of a Member which are in effect at the time of withdrawal. A withdrawn or expelled Member shall have no right to vote on any matter pending before the Pool membership.

- 15.4 No withdrawn or expelled Member may be adversely affected by any change in the Pool Agreement or other Pool documents adopted subsequent to the effective date of the Member's withdrawal or expulsion.
- 15.5 Unless disapproved by an affected excess carrier or reinsurer, the Pool shall offer a withdrawing or expelled Member, no later than forty-five (45) days after the expulsion or Board's receipt of the written notice of withdrawal, at least twenty-four (24) months extended reporting period on any claims-made coverage provided through the Pool, at a cost reasonably calculated by the Board and subject to any contracts existing at the time of withdrawal or expulsion.

ARTICLE 16. Miscellaneous

- 16.1 This document constitutes an intergovernmental agreement among those Special Districts which become Members of the Pool. The terms of this agreement may be enforced in court by the Pool or by any of its Members. The consideration for the duties herewith imposed on the Members to take certain actions and to refrain from certain other actions shall be based upon the mutual promises and agreements of the Members set forth herein.
- 16.2 A certified or attested copy of the resolution of approval for each Member shall be attached to the Member's Pool Agreement on file with the Pool.
- 16.3 Except to the extent of the limited financial contributions to the Pool agreed to herein or such additional obligations as may come about through amendments to this Pool Agreement, the contracting parties intend in the creation of the Pool to establish an organization to operate only within the scope herein set out and have not otherwise created as between Member and Member any relationship of surety, indemnification or responsibility for the debts of or claims against any other Member.
- 16.4 The provisions of this Pool Agreement and of the other documents referred to herein, and the assets of the Pool, are for the benefit of the Members of the Pool only, and no other persons or entitles shall have any rights or interest in this Pool Agreement or in any of the other documents referred to herein, or in any such assets, as a third party beneficiary or otherwise. The assets of the Pool shall not be subject to attachment, garnishment, or any equitable proceeding.
- 16.5 It is the intention of the Members that the Pool and any income of the Pool not be subject to taxation, and the Members shall cooperate in such respects, including amending this Pool Agreement, as reasonably necessary to establish and maintain the non-taxable status of the Pool.

303-858-10

- 16.6 The Insurance Commissioner of Colorado shall have such authority with respect to the formation and operation of the Pool as is provided by applicable Colorado law.
- 16.7 Except as permitted in this Pool Agreement, and amendments hereto, neither the Board nor any other person or entity is authorized to incur liabilities or obligations or enter into contracts on behalf of the Members.
- 16.8 "Insolvency" as applied to the Pool shall have the meaning as defined in Section 10-3-212, C.R.S., as amended, or as the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado may otherwise provide.
- 16.9 The statutory reporting period for the Pool shall be the calendar year or such other period as the Insurance Commissioner of Colorado may provide.
- 16.10 If any provision of this Pool Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the other provisions, and this Pool Agreement is expressly declared to be severable.
- 16.11 If the Board or its authorized representative and a Member disagree on whether a loss is covered through the Pool or on the amount of a covered loss, the Board or its authorized representative or the Member may request that the disagreement be submitted to binding arbitration as follows:
 - 1. Unless otherwise agreed by the Board or its authorized representative and the Member, three persons shall be selected for the arbitration panel, one by the Board or its authorized representative, one by the Member, and one by the two so selected to act as umpire to decide the items upon which the other two disagree. If the two so selected fail for fifteen days to agree upon the umpire, the umpire shall be selected by a judge of a court of record agreed to by the Board or its authorized representative and the Member.
 - 2. The decision of the panel shall be binding on the Board or its authorized representative and the Member.
 - 3. The Pool shall pay the fees and expenses of the panelist selected by the Board or its authorized representative, the Member shall pay the fees and expenses of the panelist selected by it, and the fees and expenses of the umpire shall be shared equally by the Pool and the Member.

Dated: January 31, 2022

By: Jeff Powles

Title: Chairman, Board of Directors and President

Special District [name]: Vistas at West Mesa Metropolitan District

By: Jeff Powles

Title: Chairman, Board of Directors and President

Date: January 31, 2022

Attest:

By: Thomas Puctable Title: District Secretary



384 Inverness Parkway Suite 170 Englewood, CO 80112 (303) 368-5757 tcwinfo@wilsonins.com

Invoice # 10707	Page 1 of 1
Account Number	Date
VISTATW-01	12/16/2021
BALANCE DUE ON	
1/1/2022	
AMOUNT PAID	Amount Due
	\$495.00

Vistas at West Mesa Metropolitan District c/o White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 2154 East Commons Ave, Suite 2000 Centennial, CO 80122

Commercial Package		PolicyNumbe	er: QUOTE 33363	Effective:	1/1/2022	to	1/1/2023
L							
Item #	Trans Eff Date	Due DateTrans	Description				Amount
69549	1/1/2022	1/1/2022 FEEA	2022 Agency Fee				\$495.00
			Total I	nvoice Balance:			\$495.00

	Division of Wor 633 17th St., Suite 40	abor and Employment kers' Compensation 0, Denver, CO 80202-3626	
EXCLU	SION OF UNCOMPE	8640 Fax: 303.318.8739	OFFICIALS
Name of Agency: <u>Vistas at W</u>	est Mesa Metropolitan District		
Federal Employer Identificati		Business Ph	none #: ((303) 85)8-1800
Mailing Address: 2154 E. Co			
	Street or P.O. Box / Suite #	2	20122
Centennial	С	State	80122 Zip
If Self-Insured Employer, ente	er the Permit Number:		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
If not Self-Insured, enter the	workers' compensation insur	ance carrier name and polic	y number:
Insurance Carr			cy Number
Upcoming Policy Period:	From: 01/2022 Month / Year	To: <u>12/2022</u>	th / Year
and Names of Officials (Attac	such officials that you are op ch additional pages if needed istas at West Mesa Metropolitar):	ge for the upcoming policy year
Category		Name of Official	
uncompensated elected or a exclude them. This form must the start of the policy period By signing this form, you are designated to be excluded from	appointed officials. You must to be filed with the Division of V for which the option is to be e e certifying that the above-name	promptly notify each official Vorkers' Compensation not le xercised. Attach governing med uncompensated, electe verage for the upcoming polic	ed or appointed public officials are cy year, pursuant to C.R.S. section
Signature:			
Print Name:			
Date:	Title:		
Enforcement Unit, 633 17 completed form and send it	th St., Suite 400, Denver, (CO 80202-3626. If insure f you have any questions, (kers' Compensation, Coverage d, please make a copy of this contact the Division of Workers'
company for the purpose of defra and civil damages. Any insurance information to a policyholder or c	uding or attempting to defraud the company or agent of an insurance laimant for the purpose of defraud	company. Penalties may include i company who knowingly provides ing or attempting to defraud the p	ing facts or information to an insurance mprisonment, fines, denial of insurance, s false, incomplete or misleading facts or policyholder or claimant with regard to a of Insurance within the Department of



Workers' Compensation Coverage

Proposal

District:	Vistas at West Mesa Metropolitan District Walker Schooler District Managers	Broker:	TCW Risk Management 384 Inverness Parkway
	614 N. Tejon Street		Suite 170
	Colorado Springs, CO 80903		Englewood, CO 80112

Propo	Proposal No. Entity ID Effective Date Expiration Dat		Expiration Date		Invoice Date				
333	362	306	2/1/2022 EOD 12/31/2022			2/9/2022			
Class Code		Description	-	o. of loyees PT	No. of Volunteers	2022 Rate	2022 Estimated Employee Payroll	2022 Estin Volunto Payro	eer Manual
8811	Board Member Coverage 0 0 5 0.75 \$0.00		\$0.00	\$6,000	.00 \$45.00				
						-	ual Contribution: nce Modification:		\$45.00 1.00
							fied Contribution:		\$45.00
							um Contribution:		\$450.00
							on Volume Credit:		\$0.00
	Designated Provider Discount:		-	\$0.00					
					Cost Co	ntainment Credit:	×	1.00	
					Ma	nual Adjustment:	×		
	Multi-Program Discount:		×	0.99					
					Est	imated Anr	ual Contribution:	=	\$450.00
				Pro Rata Factor:		×	. 0.92		
	Total Estimated Contribution:		=	\$412.00					
						_			
						Тс	tal Amount Due:		\$412.00

Estimated payroll is subject to yearend audit.

This proposal itself does not bind coverage. The district must be a member of the Special District Association of Colorado and must adopt the Pool's Intergovernmental Agreement. The terms of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) require timely payment to prevent automatic cancellation of coverage. Only prior notice to the board of directors of the Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool and subsequent approval may extend cancellation provision.

Please remit to: Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool c/o McGriff, Seibels & Williams, Inc. PO Box 1539 Portland, OR 97207-1539 Wire transfer available upon request. Billing questions: billing@csdpool.org 800-318-8870 ext. 3



Payment Instructions

The annual contribution for this coverage has been rounded to the nearest whole dollar. The annual contribution for coverage with the Pool is due upon receipt of this invoice. To make a payment, please mail your check and a copy of your invoice to:

Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool c/o McGriff Insurance Services, Inc. PO Box 1539 Portland, OR 97207

For express or overnight mail services, please use the address below:

Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool c/o McGriff Insurance Services, Inc. 1800 SW 1st Ave, Suite 400 Portland, OR 97201

To ensure that your payment is accurately applied, please always include a copy of the invoice.

The Pool does not accept a credit card payment at this time; however, if you would like to make payment via wire transfer, please let us know and we will be happy to provide you with wiring instructions.

Please be advised that in accordance with the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA), automatic expulsion will occur on the 60th day should your account not be current. If you wish to reinstate your district's coverage after cancellation has occurred, a \$100 reinstatement fee will apply.

If your district requires a payment extension, please submit a written request within ten (10) business days from the date of the invoice, for consideration by the CSD Pool Board of Directors.

Finally, all members of the Pool must be members in good standing with the Special District Association of Colorado (SDA). Please visit the SDA website at sdaco.org for member information.

Please contact us at <u>billing@csdpool.org</u> or 800-318-8870 ext. 3 for billing questions.



Property / Liability Coverage Proposal Invoice

Named Member:

Vistas at West Mesa Metropolitan District c/o Walker Schooler District Managers 614 North Tejon Street Colorado Springs, CO 80903

Broker of Record:

TCW Risk Management 384 Inverness Parkway Suite 170 Englewood, CO 80112

Proposal No.	Entity ID	Effective Date	Expiration Date	Invoice Date
33363	306	2/1/2022	EOD 12/31/2022	2/9/2022

verage		Contribution
Crime		\$ 124.00
General Liability		\$ 476.00
Hired Auto Physical Damage		\$ 59.00
No-Fault Water Intrusion & Sewer Backup		\$ 20.00
Non-Owned Auto Liability		\$ 121.00
Pollution		\$ 0.00
Public Officials Liability		\$1,064.00
Total Estimated Contribution		\$1,864
Estimated Annualized Contribution (for budgeting purposes only)	\$2,036	

Please note: where included above, Hired Auto Physical Damage and Non-Owned Auto Liability are mandatory coverages and may not be removed. No-Fault Water Intrusion & Sewer Backup coverage may only be removed with completion of the No-Fault Opt Out Endorsement.

The following discounts are applied (Not applicable to minimum contributions):

10% Direct Discount 8% Multi Program Discount for WC Program Participation

This proposal itself does not bind coverage. Payment evidences "acceptance" of this coverage. The district must be a member of the Special District Association of Colorado and must adopt the Pool's Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). The terms of the IGA require timely payment to prevent automatic cancellation of coverage. Only prior notice to the board of directors of the Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool and subsequent approval may extend cancellation provision.

Please remit to: Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool c/o McGriff Insurance Services, Inc. PO Box 1539 Portland, OR 97207-1539 Wire transfer available upon request. Billing questions: billing@csdpool.org 800-318-8870 ext. 3



2022 Excess Liability Options Proposal

This Proposal Does Not Bind Coverage

This report demonstrates what it would cost your district to increase coverage from your current limit of liability to a higher limit.

Named Member: Vistas at West Mesa Metropolitan District

Certificate Number: 33363

•

Excess Limit	Annual Excess Contribution	Change in Contribution
\$1,000,000	\$330	\$330
\$2,000,000	\$570	\$570
\$3,000,000	\$810	\$810
\$4,000,000	\$1,020	\$1,020
\$5,000,000	\$1,250	\$1,250
\$6,000,000	\$1,500	\$1,500
\$7,000,000	\$1,750	\$1,750
\$8,000,000	\$2,000	\$2,000

Note: This is not your Coverage Document. It was created solely for informational purposes. 2/9/2022



Public Entity Liability and Auto Physical Damage Proposal

Master Coverage Document Number: CSD Pool – CTC 01 01 2022 and CSD Pool PEL 01 01 22

Proposal Number: 33363

Coverage Period: 2/1/2022 to EOD 12/31/2022

Named Member:	Broker of Record:
Vistas at West Mesa Metropolitan District	TCW Risk Management
c/o Walker Schooler District Managers	384 Inverness Parkway
614 North Tejon Street	Suite 170
Colorado Springs, CO 80903	Englewood, CO 80112

This proposal is provided only for those coverages indicated below for which a contribution is shown.

Coverage	Per Occurrence Limit	Annual Aggregate Limit	Deductible	Contribution
Public Entity Liability Coverage including:	\$2,000,000	None		
General Liability	Included	None	None	\$476
Medical Payments - Premises	\$10,000	None	None	Included
Employee Benefits Liability	Included	None	None	Included
Public Officials Liability	Included	None	\$1,000	\$1,064
Employment Practices Liability	Included	None	*\$100,000	Included
Pre Loss Legal Assistance	\$3,500	\$7,000	None	Included
No-Fault Water Intrusion & Sewer Backup	\$200,000 limited to \$10,000 Any One Premises	***\$1,000,000	\$500	\$20
Cyber	\$200,000	**\$200,000	\$1,000	Included
Fiduciary Liability	\$200,000	**\$200,000	\$1,000	Included
Excess Liability - Coverage agreements A,B,C,D	No Coverage	No Coverage	N/A	No
Auto Liability	No Coverage	No Coverage	N/A	No
Medical Payments – Auto	No Coverage	No Coverage	N/A	No
Non-Owned and Hired Auto Liability	Included	None	None	\$121
Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists Liability	No Coverage	No Coverage	N/A	No
Auto Physical Damage	No Coverage	No Coverage	N/A	No
Hired Auto Physical Damage	\$50,000	N/A	\$500/\$500	\$59
Auto Physical Damage - Employee Deductible Reimbursement	\$2,500	N/A	None	Included

Total Contribution \$1,740

*Employment Practices Liability Deductible: 50% of loss including Indemnity and Legal Expenses subject to a maximum deductible of *\$100,000 each occurrence.

**A \$5,000,000 All Member Annual Aggregate Limit shall apply to Cyber.

**A \$1,000,000 All Member Annual Aggregate Limit shall apply to Fiduciary Liability.

***No-Fault Water Intrusion & Sewer Backup has \$1,000,000 All Member Annual Aggregate Limit.

Additional Endorsements applicable to Member:

Authorized Representative Countersigned by:

This proposal does not bind coverage. Coverage is effective upon receipt of payment, which is considered "acceptance" of coverage.



-			
Master Coverage Document Number: J05931794	Insurer: Federal Insurance Company (Chubb)		
Proposal Number: 33363	Coverage Period: 2/1/2022 to EOD 12/31/2022		
Named Member: Vistas at West Mesa Metropolitan District c/o Walker Schooler District Managers 614 North Tejon Street Colorado Springs, CO 80903	Broker of Record: TCW Risk Management 384 Inverness Parkway Suite 170 Englewood, CO 80112		
	Covered Designated Agent(s):		
Coverages and Limits:			
Employee Theft:	\$5,000		
Limit is maximum for each loss			
• Employee includes executives, full-time, part-time, seas	onal, leased and		
temporary employee(s), interns or non-compensated vo	plunteer.		
 Includes funds from a sponsored benefit plan. 			
Public Official Faithful Performance of Duty:	\$5,000		
Client Theft:	\$5,000		
Forgery or Alteration:	\$5,000		
On Premises:	\$5,000		
In Transit:	\$5,000		
Computer System Fraud:	\$5,000		
Funds Transfer Fraud:	\$5,000		
Debit, Credit or Charge Card Fraud:	\$5,000		
Money Orders and Counterfeit Paper Currency Fraud:	\$5,000		
Social Engineering Fraud:	\$5,000		
<u>Deductible(</u> s):			
All Crime except Social Engineer Fraud:	\$100		
Social Engineering Fraud:	20% of Social Engineering Fraud Limit		
Contribution:	\$124		

Crime Proposal

Policy Forms:

PF-52815 (04/20)	The Chubb Primary [™] Commercial Crime Insurance
PF-52853 (04/20)	Governmental Entity (Colorado Special Districts Pool) Endorsement
PF-53127 (04/20)	Colorado Amendatory Endorsement
PF-52851 (04/20)	Add Corporate Credit Card Coverage

Frey L h Countersigned by:

Authorized Representative



Identity Recovery Proposal

Master Coverage Policy Number:	Insurer:		
CSD Pool IDR Form 01 01 21	The Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection and Insurance Company		

Proposal Number: 33363

Coverage Period: 2/1/2022 to EOD 12/31/2022

Named Member:

Vistas at West Mesa Metropolitan District c/o Walker Schooler District Managers 614 North Tejon Street Colorado Springs, CO 80903 Broker of Record: TCW Risk Management 384 Inverness Parkway Suite 170 Englewood, CO 80112

Member:

All permanent employees and District Board members participating in the Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool; Special District Association of Colorado staff and Board of Directors.

Coverage:

Reimbursement coverage for expenses arising from a defined "Identity Theft" event. Including: legal fees for answer of civil judgements and defense of criminal charges; phone, postage, shipping fees; notary and filing fees; credit bureau reports; lost wages; child/elder care and mental health counseling.

This coverage does not reimburse the member for monies stolen or fraudulently charged to the member, and excludes loss arising from the member's fraudulent, dishonest or criminal act.

Annual Aggregate Limit per Member: \$35,000

Case Management Service Expenses - does not reduce the limit available

Legal Costs - reduces the limit available

Sub Limits:

\$5,000	Lost Wages and Child/Elder Care
\$1,000	Mental Health Counseling
\$1,000	Miscellaneous Expenses

Coverage Trigger: Coverage is provided on a discovery basis with a 60-day reporting requirement

Claims:

For Recovery Assistance and Counseling, please call 1-800-945-4617

Countersigned by: And age Authorized Representative



PROPOSAL

General Liability Schedule Metropolitan District

Proposal Number: 33363

Coverage Period: 2/1/2022 - EOD 12/31/2022

Broker: Kim, Toyon (21253)

Named Member: Vistas at West Mesa Metropolitan District

Code	Description	Unit	Amount	Effective Date	Expiration Date
105	105-Total Operating Expenses - Any other	Dollars	50,000.00	2/1/2022	12/31/2022
348	348-Number of Board Members	Total	5.00	2/1/2022	12/31/2022

If your district has exposures not listed on the General Liability schedule above, such as airplanes, security staff, bridges, drones, etc., please furnish details. Certain activities may be excluded or restricted.